
 

 
 
 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, March 23, 2015 

Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 
 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

   

1. Call to Order. 
 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 

  
 
3. Roll Call. 

 
 
Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Meeting of March 9, 2015. 

 

 
Information 5. Monthly Operations Report for February 2015 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 

Committee). 
 

 
 6. Written Communications.  

 

 
7. Oral Communications. 
 

The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may 
address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda 
item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum 
of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion. 
 

 
Motion 8. Resolution No. ______, Accept the Construction of the Primary Digester No. 5 

Rehabilitation Project from D.W. Nicholson Corporation and Authorize the Attorney for 
the District to Record a Notice of Completion (to be reviewed by the Construction 
Committee).   
 

Motion 9. Resolution No. _____, Approve Exception to the 180-Day Wait Period for Post-
Retirement Employment for Andy Morrison (to be reviewed by the Personnel 
Committee). 
 

Information  10.    Information Items: 
a. Check Register. 
b. Co-Digestion Pilot. 
 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 62



 
Information  11. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  

a. Construction Committee – scheduled for Thursday, 3/19/15 at 8:45 a.m. 
b. Personnel Committee – scheduled for Friday, 3/20/15 at 9:30 a.m. 
c. Budget & Finance Committee – scheduled for Friday, 3/20/15 at 1:30 p.m. 
d. Legal/Community Affairs Committee–will not meet. 
 

 
Information  12.  General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 

 

 
Information       13.   Other Business: 

a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 
business and are welcome to request information from staff. 

b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.  
 

 
14. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom 

on Monday, April 13, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the 
Union Sanitary District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 
 
If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not 
on the agenda, the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum 
of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s 
office at (510) 477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

Page 2 of 62



 
NOTICE OF       All meetings will be held in 
COMMITTEE MEETING     the General Manager’s Office 
 

 
 
 

BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 23, 2015 
       

Committee Membership: 
Budget and Finance Directors Anjali Lathi and Tom Handley (Alt. – Pat Kite) 
Construction Committee Directors Pat Kite and Jennifer Toy (Alt. – Manny Fernandez) 
Legal/Community Affairs Directors Pat Kite and Tom Handley (Alt. –Anjali Lathi) 
Legislative Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Jennifer Toy (Alt–Tom Handley) 
Personnel Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Anjali Lathi (Alt. – Jennifer Toy) 
Audit Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Tom Handley (Alt. Jennifer Toy) 
 
 
 
Construction Committee, Thursday, March 19, 2015 at 8:45 a.m. 
 
8. Resolution No. ______, Accept the Construction of the Primary Digester No. 5 Rehabilitation 

Project from D.W. Nicholson Corporation and Authorize the Attorney for the District to Record 
a Notice of Completion. 

 

 
Personnel Committee, Friday, March 20, 2015 at 9:30 a.m. 
 
9. Resolution No. _____, Approve Exception to the 180-Day Wait Period for Post-Retirement 

Employment for Andy Morrison. 
 

 
Budget & Finance Committee, Friday, March 20, 2015 at 1:30 p.m. 
 
5. Monthly Operations Report for February 2014. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Committee meetings may include teleconference participation by one or more Directors. 
(Gov. Code Section 11123) 

Committee Meetings are open to the public. Only written comments will be considered. No action will be taken. 

Page 3 of 62



 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

March 9, 2015 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Fernandez called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, President  
  Jennifer Toy, Vice President  
  Tom Handley, Secretary 
  Pat Kite, Director 
  Anjali Lathi, Director 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager 
  Dave O’Hara, District Counsel 
  Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager 
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager  
  James Schofield, Collection Services Manager  
  Armando Lopez, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager 
  Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, & Construction Manager 
  Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary 

 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 23, 2015 
 
It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Director Lathi, to Approve the Minutes of the Board 
of Director’s Meeting held February 23, 2015.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no written communications. 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no oral communications. 
 
AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDER NO. 10 WITH 
GSE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR THE THICKENER CONTROL BUILDING 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Construction Committee.  Technical Services Manager 
Ghossain stated the construction contract for the Thickener Control Building Improvements 
Project was awarded to GSE on May 27, 2014.  Bid Alternate D was included in the 
construction contract to replace the existing temporary thickened primary sludge PVC pipes 
and fittings.  This option was added to the project in the event that the PVC piping was found 
Page 4 of 62



to be a contributor to the grease accumulation identified by District staff in February 2014.  The 
contract included a provision that reserved the right for the District to delete Bid Alternate D 
before March 13, 2015.  District staff have been monitoring the thickened primary sludge 
processes, and have determined the PVC pipes and fittings are not a contributing factor to the 
grease accumulation issue.  Therefore, staff recommends executing Change Order No. 10 to 
delete Bid Alternate D for the credit amount of $217,000 for the Project.  
 
It was moved by Secretary Handley, seconded by Director Lathi, to Authorize the General 
Manager to Execute Change Order No. 10 with GSE Construction Company for the Thickener 
Control Building Improvements Project.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2753, ACCEPTING A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT FOR 
TRACT 8042 LOCATED NEAR MISSION BOULEVARD AND CHANTECLER DRIVE IN THE 
CITY OF FREMONT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated Edenbridge Capital Partners will be constructing a new housing 
development near the intersection of Mission Boulevard and Chantecler Drive in Fremont.  The 
new sewer mains that will provide service to the development are located within a private 
street, Felipe Common.  Edenbridge Capital Partners will grant the District a sanitary sewer 
easement that provides the District the ability to access, maintain, and service the new sewer 
mains at no cost to the District.  District staff have reviewed the legal description and plot map 
of the easement and recommend approval. 
 
It was moved by Vice President Toy, seconded by Secretary Handley, to Adopt Resolution    
No. 2753, Accepting a Sanitary Sewer Easement for Tract 8042 Located Near Mission 
Boulevard and Chantecler Drive in the City of Fremont.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
APPROVE PRIVATE LATERAL STUDY NEXT STEPS 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Collection Services 
Manager Schofield stated that at the Board Workshop held October 20, 2014, staff reported 
on the results of the District’s Private Lateral Study.  The purpose of the study was to 
understand the condition of private residential laterals and how they might contribute to wet 
weather flow, and review alternatives to assist property owners with repair and replacement 
strategies.  The Private Lateral Task Force was directed to develop a Lateral Awareness 
Outreach Program, and to explore the feasibility of adopting a lateral replacement grant or loan 
program.  Staff recommended a program that would target private residences with vitrified clay 
pipe laterals or residences built prior to 1973, and allow homeowners to be reimbursed up to 
$300 for costs incurred having their private residential sewer lateral video inspected.  This 
lateral grant program was intended as a first phase to expand awareness of lateral 
maintenance, and explore the level of interest while a more comprehensive loan program was 
researched.  Staff is requesting funds from the Private Lateral Study be reallocated to fund 
both the grant program and the development of products for the Lateral Awareness Outreach 
Program. 
 
The Board cited concerns regarding the proposed grant program, and directed staff to continue 
exploring a potential loan program.  General Manager Eldredge stated staff will gather 
information and present a detailed report to the Board at a future meeting. 
 

Page 5 of 62



It was moved by Secretary Handley, seconded by Director Lathi, to reallocate Private Lateral 
Study funds to the development of materials for the Lateral Awareness Outreach Program.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
Check Register   
All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Publication of Global Plating and Safety-Kleen, Newark as Significant Violators in 2014  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated that per the requirements of 40 CFR Section 
403.8(f)(2)(viii) of the General Pretreatment Regulations for new and existing sources, the 
District is required to publish the names of all dischargers to the District’s wastewater treatment 
plant that were in Significant Noncompliance (SNC) with EPA Pretreatment Regulations and/or 
the District’s Ordinance No. 36 any time during the 2014 calendar year.  Global Plating and 
Safety-Kleen of California, both dischargers to the District’s wastewater treatment plant, had 
significant violation during the SNC evaluation period covering April through September of 
2014.  District staff prepared the required Public Notice:  Notice of Significant Violator, and it 
will be published in the Argus Newspaper on March 10, 2015. 
 
Report on the EBDA Commission Meeting of February 19, 2015   
Secretary Handley reported the following: 

• The General Managers Report indicated the City of Hayward and Union Sanitary District 
approved the language changes to the Fourth JPA Amendment.  The remaining 
member agencies are scheduled to review the revisions in March. 

• The Managers Advisory Committee discussed a strategy for moving the Hayward 
Effluent Pump Station.   

• The Financial Management Committee approved the January List of Disbursements 
and Treasurer’s Report.   

• The Regulatory Affairs Committee reviewed the status report for the NPDES permit.  
The Committee discussed January permit compliance and the status of the BACWA 
nutrients watershed permit. 

• The Operations & Maintenance (O&M) Committee reviewed EBDA’s performance and 
the status of O&M projects.  EBDA is working with Oro Loma staff on the OLEPS 
automation review and upgrade project.   

• The Personnel Committee met in closed session to review the details for the General 
Manager’s transition strategy, and there was no reportable action. 

 
CASA 12th Annual Washington D.C. Conference   
General Manager Eldredge stated he and Secretary Handley attended the 12th Annual CASA 
Washington D.C. Conference February 23 – 25, 2015.  General Manager Eldredge stated that 
one of the more interesting concepts discussed at the Conference was an option to fund 
transportation and infrastructure projects referred to as the “Infrastructure 2.0 Act”.  The Act 
would allow trillions of dollars overseas to be repatriated at a rate below the current tax rate of 
30 – 35%.  Current proposals range between an 8-13% tax rate for a given period of time, and 
have been gaining bi-partisan support as a way to fund projects.   
 
Secretary Handley stated CASA provided a list of talking points to aide in discussions with 
Congressional representatives.   The list included a request to extend the length of NPDES 
permit renewal from five-year terms to ten-year terms, and declared support for water recycling 
and watershed improvement project loans and grants. 

Page 6 of 62



 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 
 
The Construction and Legal/Community Affairs Committees met. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 

• General Manager Eldredge stated staff had been asked to provide a presentation on 
the Alvarado Niles Project for the City of Union City at the regular City Council meeting 
of March 10, 2015.  Staff has since been informed there are several other projects 
occurring within the project area within the same timeframe, and the presentation has 
been placed on hold.  District and City staff remain in communication regarding potential 
changes to the project timeline, and rescheduling the City Council presentation. 

• Eight proposals were received in response to the District Counsel RFP.  A closed 
session will be held March 23, 2015, to discuss the proposals and next steps. 

• The California Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA) recognized the District 
for Workers Compensation Excellence in the Large Agency Category for 2013/14.  
Environmental Health and Safety Program Manager Marzano stated there was a 
significant reduction in the cost of workers compensation claims reported by the District 
during the recognized year. 

• The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) will consider the Patterson 
Ranch annexation request at their meeting to be held March 12, 2015.  Patterson Ranch 
is in the City of Fremont, and there is a proposal for 500 single family homes to be built 
at the location.  This proposed annexation was considered a Board meeting in July of 
2014. 

• General Manager Eldredge and Human Resources Administrator Berzon will interview 
a recruiter that may be used to assist in filling the Business Services Manager, Business 
Services Coach, and Human Resources Administrator positions.  The District received 
five proposals in response to the RFP.  The Wastewater Operations Coach position will 
be discussed at the Combined Board Workshop to be held March 17, 2015.  
Recruitment for the Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Coach position is 
scheduled to close on March 19, 2015.  First round interviews for the Environmental 
Compliance/Customer Service Administrative Specialist position will be held             
March 10, 2015.  First round interviews for the Environmental Outreach Representative 
position will be held March 19, 2015.  Internal recruitment for the Collection System 
Planner/Scheduler position is scheduled to close on March 11, 2015.  Recruitment for 
the Human Resources Analyst position is scheduled to close on March 23, 2015 

• The Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project – Phase II is currently out to 
bid, and the bid period will close on March 31, 2015. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS: 
There was no other business. 
 
 
 
 
Page 7 of 62



ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:45 p.m. to the T&D Coach and Legislative Update Combined 
Board Workshop in the Boardroom on Tuesday, March 17, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
The Board will then adjourn to the District Counsel RFP Closed Session on Monday,            
March 23, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 
 
The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom on Monday,       
March 23, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________   __________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     TOM HANDLEY 
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD   SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
__________________________ 
MANNY FERNANDEZ 
PRESIDENT 
 
 
 

Adopted this 23rd day of March, 2015 
 

Page 8 of 62



  

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
DATE: March 17, 2015 
 
TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 5 - Meeting of March 23, 2015 
 Information Item: Monthly Operations Report for February, 2015 
  
Background 
 
Attached is the February 2015 Operations Report.  Staff is available to answer questions regarding 
information contained in the report. 
 
Work Group Managers 
 
General Manager/Administration   Paul Eldredge  GM   
Business Services     Rich Cortés  BS   
Collection Services     James Schofield  CS   
Technical Support     Sami Ghossain  TS   
Treatment and Disposal Services   Armando Lopez  T&D  
Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction  Robert Simonich FMC 
 
General Manager’s Summary 
Below is a summary of major activities that occurred at the District during February 2015. 
 
ODOR COMPLAINTS:   
 
There was one odor complaint received in February from Fremont.  District staff investigated the 
complaint, and no odor was found.  The findings were relayed to the reporting party. 
 
SAFETY:  
January 

• There were no injuries in January.  We did have an incident where an employee twisted 
their ankle but declined medical treatment. 

• We had a near miss of an electrical light switch shorting and melting, caused by moisture 
since the switch was in a shower.  The switch was replaced and moved into the hall 
outside the shower. 

Page 9 of 62



• There have been a couple of comments received on the Safety Blog regarding contractor 
vehicles entering the treatment plant without an access code and just following other 
vehicles.  We will be looking at contracting with a security company to monitor the gate 
in the morning when most contractors are arriving. 

• The new carts for the treatment plant arrived.  Safe operating procedures were reviewed 
and shared with employees. 

February 
• We had a new injury reported.  The employee has had pain for about 1 ½ years in his right 

wrist.  The employee was diagnosed with Carpal tunnel syndrome.  He is still at work with 
restrictions.  We are waiting to hear the results of additional testing. 

• Another employee that was working with medical restrictions has been released to full 
duty.  At this time there are no employees off work from work related injuries. 

• Two employees declined medical treatment from different incidents.  One employee was 
working on a ladder, having to go up and down many times causing knee pain. We are 
looking at options for the task so the time on the ladder is reduced.  Another employee 
was operating one of the large trucks all day.  Getting in and out of the truck with 18 inch 
steps caused knee pain.  The truck steps are being modified to 12 inch steps to reduce 
knee strain when entering. 

• One district vehicle was hit while parked and the USD employee was out of the 
vehicle.  The vehicle had minor damage and was able to be driven. 

• We received guidance from the CDC for workers handling untreated sewage from 
individuals with EBOLA.  The USD Bloodborne Pathogen control plan was updated to 
include the most current information and training is being planned for the employees that 
are impacted. 

 
STAFFING & PERSONNEL:   
 Recruitments and Selection 

• Rich Czapkay was promoted to Coach, Collection Services 
 

G.M. ACTIVITIES:  For the month of February, the GM was involved in the following: 
• Participated in interviews for the Treatment and Disposal Services Coach position 
• Prepared for and attended the Mid-Year Budget Board Workshop 
• Met with EBDA MAC members to discuss wet weather operations  
• Met with the General Manager from Alameda County Water District to further 

agency relations  
• Prepared for and attended the Newsletter Board Workshop 
• Received and reviewed RFP’s for District Legal Counsel 
• Prepared for and attended the Federal CASA Conference in Washington D.C. 

 
Attachments: Odor Report and Map 
  Hours Worked and Leave Time by Work Group 
  Business Services 
  Technical Services 
  Collection Services 
  Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction 
  Treatment and Disposal Services 

Page 10 of 62



 

  
 ODOR REPORT 

 February 2015 

 

 During the recording period from February 01, 2015 through February 28, 2015, there was one  

 odor related service request received by the District. 

 

 City:  Fremont 
 
 
 1. Complaint Details: 
 
 Date:  2/4/2015 Time:   1:46 pm 
 Location:  COVINGTON DR Reported By: Stan Peters 

 Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed:  N/A mph 
 Temperature:  66 Degrees F Weather: Sunny 
 
 Response and Follow-up: 
 We inspected the sewer manholes, mains and storm drains in the area. We did not detect any  
 any odors. We relayed our findings to the reporting party. 

 

Page 11 of 62



^

#^

#

#

#

#
#

#

!

!

#

!

#

^

#
^

!

#

#

!

#

#

#

#

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Location of Odor Reports
March 2014 to February 2015

.0 1 2 3 4 50.5
Miles

Legend
Odor Complaints: February 2015

Odor Complaints: Mar. 2014 to Jan. 2015
No odor found (1)

Odor found, not related to USD (5)
Odor found, USD resolved (4)

No odor found (15)

#

!

^

#

! Odor found, not related to USD (0)
^ Odor found, USD resolved (0)

1. No odor found

Page 12 of 62



NOTES

(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part‐time or temporary employees.

(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 

(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, FLEX, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, 

     Paid Admin., SLIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.

(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves as well as protected time off, which the District has

     no discretion.

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34.9 hours

per week over the course of a year; with 20 vacation days, 34.2 hours per week.

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP
July 16, 2014 through March 11, 2015
Weeks to Date: 34 out of 52 (65.4%)

19.2  21.2 

42.9 

10.6 
21.0 

50.5 

29.6 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

Average Annual Sick Leave Used Per Employee to Date 

Target is 47

35.2  36.7  35.4  37.2  37.4  37.8  36.9 

 ‐

 5.0

 10.0

 15.0

 20.0

 25.0

 30.0

 35.0

 40.0

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

At‐Work Hours Per Employee Per Week

Target is 34

Page 13 of 62



Regular         

(1)

Overtime      

(2)

Discretionary 

(3)

Short Term 

Disability

Workers 

Comp 

Sick          

(4)

Average 

Number of 

Employees

At‐Work 

Hours Per 

Week Per 

Employee

Annual 

Sick Leave 

Used

GM 3 3,560.53            29.00               35.2 822.00           ‐            ‐            57.50             19.2 3 34.0 26.4

BS 22 27,342.08          130.86             36.7 4,420.83        43.34        ‐            465.75           21.2 22 35.1 27.3

FMC 23 26,218.50          1,436.32          35.4 4,337.74        272.65      330.50      987.61           42.9 21 36.2 49.0

TD 25 31,081.75          544.48             37.2 3,875.25        ‐            ‐            266.00           10.6 24 34.4 56.9

TS 29 36,746.21          83.00               37.4 4,804.68        ‐            ‐            610.44           21.0 30 35.2 34.4

CS 30 35,369.97          3,136.76          37.8 5,884.37        108.54      52.50        1,513.62         50.5 31 35.4 58.6

All Groups 132 160,319.04        5,360.42          36.9 24,144.87     424.53      383.00      3,900.92        29.6 131 35.2 45.1

SICK LEAVE INCENTIVE PROGRAM TARGETS >=34 <=47
The Sick Leave Incentive Program target goals are 47 or less hours of sick leave per employee annually, and 34 or more hours of at‐work time per week per employee. 

NOTES

(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part‐time or temporary employees.

(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 

(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, FLEX, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, Paid Admin., SLIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.

(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves as well as protected time off, which the District has no discretion.

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34.9 hours per week over the course of a year;  

with 20 vacation days, 34.2 hours per week.

LEAVE HOURS FY14

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP

July 16, 2014 through February 11, 2015

Weeks to Date: 34 out of 52 (65.4%)

Average Annual Sick 

Leave Used Per 

Employee To Date

AT‐WORK HOURS At‐Work Hours 

Per Employee 

Per Week

Group Average 

Number of 

Employees

Page 14 of 62



 
 
 
 

• The recruitment for Collection Services Coach was completed; Rich Czapkay was selected. 
• The Organizational Performance Program Manager (OPPM) developed and presented information on Critical Skills 

Mapping to the ET. 
• The OPPM worked with TPPM to develop Customer Service training course to be presented to all employees. 
• The OPPM helped revise New EE Orientation Checklist. 
• The OPPM facilitated OST team scorecard review/brainstorming session. 
• The OPPM facilitated and guided E &S in development of a brand new balanced scorecard. 
• The OPPM provided an Organizational Orientation to TPO Operator Trainee III Mike Fulkerson. 
• The OPPM created a presentation on Benchmarking and presented to the management team; captured ideas for 

research on potential benchmarking initiatives from the group. 
• The OPPM participated in full Safety Strategy and Safety BSC review with GM and EHSPM. 
• The OPPM initiated meeting with EC to clarify Green Business certification measure. 
• The OPPM represented USD and Benchmarking group in presenting concerns on Qual Serv data collection with 

AWWA. 
• The OPPM suggested meeting and presented Strategic Planning process to new WG Managers (Armando and 

James) to prepare them for the SP Lite sessions coming in the next several months. 
• IT Team held a brown bag meeting on the topic of IT Security. 
• FIST began the project design process for the new timekeeping system, Kronos, to be implemented by the end of 

the fiscal year. 
• The Senior Accountant began an audit of the Retiree Medical Reimbursement process with the goal of making it 

more efficient. 
• The Technical Training Program Manager (TTPM) attended the quarterly Tri-City Emergency Services Association 

(TESA) Meeting at Ohlone College.  TESA is planning to have an emergency exercise later this year. 
• The Human Resources Administrator (HRA) provided information to the Deputy General Manager and HR 

Manager from Delta Diablo on USD’s Leadership School. 
 

Performance Measures 
 

AVERAGE MONTHLY YIELD       
 

 

0.00%

0.25%

0.50%

0.75%

1.00%

Average Monthly Yield

LAIF 1Yr Rolling Avg Treasury USD Yield

Business Services Group  
Activities Report 

February 2015 

Page 15 of 62



BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT

FY 2015    Year-to-date as of 2/28/15 67% of year elapsed
Audited

Revenues % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Rec'd Actuals 6/30/14

  Capacity Fees $2,700,000 $2,822,576 105% $3,315,007
  Sewer Service Charges 47,448,461 24,419,103 51% 45,139,420
  Operating 848,500 572,018 67% 1,072,242
  Interest 299,000 184,992 62% 385,844
  Misc. (incl. LAVWMA pymnt, solar, Cogen rebates) 1,994,200 241,719 12% 297,776

 Subtotal Revenues $53,290,161 $28,240,408 53% $50,210,289

  SRF Loan Proceeds (Thickener) 3,390,000 1,000,640 30% 2,424,739

Total Revenues + SRF Proceeds $56,680,161 $29,241,048 52% $52,635,028

Expenses % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

  Capital Improvement Prog.
       Capacity Projects $3,240,000 $1,491,673 46% $5,592,023
       Renewal & Repl. Projects 11,632,500 8,013,984 69% 14,195,068
  Operating 32,659,214 20,362,040 62% 30,751,966
  Special Projects 1,708,478 368,693 22% 775,361
  Retiree Medical (Annual Required Contribution) 543,540 271,770 50% 462,852
  Vehicle & Equipment 1,057,700 168,257 16% 784,695
  Information Systems 1,216,000 371,761 31% 848,449
  Plant & Pump Station R&R 250,000 94,727 38% 197,237
  Pretreatment Fund 7,000 20,843 298% 5,124
  County Fee for Sewer Service Charge Admin. 106,000 52,780 50% 105,559
  Misc. (A/R write-off) 0 0 0% 1,343
  Debt Servicing:
     SRF Loans (Irv.,Wilw,LHH,Cdr,NPS, Sub1,Boyc,Prim Cl) 3,127,389 3,127,110 100% 4,675,361

Total Expenses $55,547,821 $34,343,638 62% $58,395,038

Total Revenue & Proceeds less Expenses $1,132,340 ($5,102,590) ($5,760,010)

Gross Operating Expenses by Work Group % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Board of Directors $170,900 $83,643 49% $166,233
General Manager/Admin. 1,036,505 736,234 71% 1,153,217
Business Services 4,666,100 3,198,750 69% 4,416,832
Collection Services 5,954,753 3,654,259 61% 5,460,336
Technical Services 5,247,562 3,173,048 60% 4,850,139
Treatment & Disposal Services 9,980,700 6,162,407 62% 9,739,655
Fabrication, Maint. & Construction 5,602,694 3,353,698 60% 4,965,555

Total $32,659,214 $20,362,040 62% $30,751,966

Operating Expenses by Type % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Personnel (incl D&E) $22,966,422 $14,268,412 62% (69%)* $21,125,985
Repairs & Maintenance 1,828,375 1,039,077 57% 1,615,427
Supplies & Matls (chemicals, small tools) 2,453,720 1,436,289 59% 2,442,617
Outside Services (utilities, biosolids, legal) 5,217,697 3,481,241 67% 5,493,010
Fixed Assets 193,000 137,021 71% 74,927

Total $32,659,214 $20,362,040 62% $30,751,966

* Personnel Budget Target

Page 16 of 62



 
 

 
 

    
 

         

2,700,000

47,448,461

848,500
299,000

5,384,200
2,822,576

24,419,103

572,018 184,992
1,242,359

$0
$5,000,000

$10,000,000
$15,000,000
$20,000,000
$25,000,000
$30,000,000
$35,000,000
$40,000,000
$45,000,000
$50,000,000

  Capacity Fees   Sewer Service Charges   Operating   Interest   Misc. (incl. SRF proceeds,
LAVWMA)

USD Revenues 

Budget

Actual

14,872,500

32,666,214

1,708,478 543,540
1,057,700 1,216,000

250,000
3,233,389

9,505,657

20,382,883

368,693 271,770 168,257 371,761 94,727
3,179,890

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

  CIP   Operating/PRTM   Spec. Proj.   Retiree Med.   Vehic & Equip.   Info. Systems   Plant&P.S.   Debt+CntyFee+Misc

Total USD Expenses

Budget

Actual

170,900 1,036,505

4,666,100

5,954,753
5,247,562

9,980,700

5,602,694

83,643 736,234

3,198,750

654,259

3,173,048

6,162,407

3,353,698

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

Board GM/Admin. BS CS TS T&D FMC

Operating Expenses by Work Group

Budget
Actual

22,966,422

1,828,375 2,453,720

5,217,697

193,000

14,268,412

1,039,077 1,436,289 3,481,241

137,021
$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

Personnel (incl D&E) Repairs & Maintenance Operating Supplies &
Matls

Outside Services Fixed Assets

Operating Expenses by Type

Budget

Actual

Page 17 of 62



 

 

 

Maturity 
Range 

Face 
Amount/Shares 

YTM @ 
Cost Cost Value 

Days To 
Maturity 

% of 
Portfolio Market Value Book Value 

Duration To 
Maturity 

0-1 Month 2,240,000.00 0.889 2,379,630.00 4 11.32 2,240,088.32 2,240,551.12 0.02 

3-6 Months 2,545,000.00 0.565 2,579,611.60 125 12.28 2,553,865.83 2,551,937.73 0.35 

6-9 Months 240,000.00 0.450 240,000.00 186 1.14 240,115.25 240,000.00 0.51 

9-12 Months 4,046,000.00 0.429 4,097,528.10 308 19.50 4,072,947.75 4,070,476.70 0.84 

1-2 Years 8,390,000.00 0.638 8,408,720.50 500 40.02 8,413,580.67 8,409,691.04 1.36 

2-3 Years 3,313,000.00 1.060 3,307,603.57 795 15.74 3,315,033.93 3,308,054.96 2.16 

Total /Average 20,774,000.00 0.681 21,013,093.77 403 100 20,835,631.75 20,820,711.55 1.10 

 

All Portfolio Holdings Distribution by Asset Class 

Operating Fund Holdings Distribution by Asset Class 

 

Operating Fund Maturity Distribution 

Page 18 of 62



Union Sanitary District
Board Report - Holdings
Report Format: By Transaction
Group By: Asset Class
Portfolio/Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 2/28/2015

Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 
Cost

Next Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of 
Portfolio

Agencies

FHLMC 0.5 
6/20/2016-14 3134G4N38 Moodys-

Aaa 12/20/2013 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.500 998,160.00 0.500 3/20/2015 6/20/2016 2.60

FHLMC 0.75 
2/13/2017 3134G6BQ5 Moodys-

Aaa 2/13/2015 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.750 999,290.00 0.750 2/13/2017 2.60

FHLMC 0.9 
5/26/2017-15 3134G6CE1 Moodys-

Aaa 2/26/2015 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.900 997,430.00 0.900 5/26/2015 5/26/2017 2.60

FHLMC 1.05 
6/30/2017-15 3134G5TE5 Moodys-

Aaa 12/30/2014 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.050 1,002,490.00 1.050 6/30/2015 6/30/2017 2.60

FNMA 0.5 
3/30/2016 3135GOVA8 Moodys-

Aaa 1/24/2014 1,000,000.00 1,000,750.00 0.500 1,001,530.00 0.465 3/30/2016 2.60

Sub Total / 
Average 5,000,000.00 5,000,750.00 0.740 4,998,900.00 0.733 13.00

CAMP

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 None 5/31/2011 9,792.44 9,792.44 0.060 9,792.44 0.060 N/A N/A 0.03

Sub Total / 
Average 9,792.44 9,792.44 0.060 9,792.44 0.060 0.03

Certificates of Deposit

Ally Bank 1 
10/24/2016 02006LKM4 None 10/23/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 1.000 240,000.00 1.000 10/24/2016 0.62

American 
Express Bank 1.1 
10/24/2016

02587CBZ2 None 10/23/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 1.100 240,000.00 1.100 10/24/2016 0.62

Bank of China NY 
0.5 2/4/2016 06426TCH0 None 2/4/2015 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.500 239,637.00 0.500 2/4/2016 0.62

Beal Bank USA 
0.45 9/2/2015 07370WLQ7 None 12/3/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.450 240,115.25 0.450 9/2/2015 0.62

05568P6V4 None 3/31/2014 240,000.00 239,760.00 0.500 239,550.10 0.552 3/14/2016 0.62

Page 19 of 62



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 
Cost

Next Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of 
Portfolio

BMW Bank North 
America 0.5 
3/14/2016

Capital One Bank 
1 10/24/2016 140420QG8 None 10/22/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 1.000 240,000.00 1.000 10/24/2016 0.62

Discover Bank 
0.5 6/11/2015 254671D72 None 12/24/2013 240,000.00 239,918.40 0.500 240,166.08 0.523 6/11/2015 0.62

GE Capital Retail 
Bank 0.95 
3/16/2015

36157PAU3 None 1/2/2013 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.950 240,088.32 0.950 3/16/2015 0.62

Great Midwest 
Bank 0.75 
7/27/2016

39083PCK6 None 10/27/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.750 239,996.57 0.750 7/27/2016 0.62

Merrick Bank 0.5 
6/30/2015 5912Y5Y9 None 12/30/2013 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.500 240,172.10 0.500 6/30/2015 0.62

Santander Bank 
0.5 2/4/2016 80280JDH1 None 2/4/2015 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.500 239,637.00 0.500 2/4/2016 0.62

Sub Total / 
Average 2,640,000.00 2,639,678.40 0.705 2,639,362.42 0.711 6.86

Corporate Issues

Caterpillar 
Financial 1 
3/3/2017

14912L5Z0 Moodys-
A2 12/23/2014 1,313,000.00 1,307,603.57 1.000 1,315,113.93 1.190 3/3/2017 3.40

General Electric 
Capital Corp 
1.625 7/2/2015

36962G5Z3 Moodys-
A1 3/31/2014 1,000,000.00 1,014,530.00 1.625 1,004,280.00 0.460 7/2/2015 2.64

General Electric 
Capital Corp 
2.375 6/30/2015

36962G5F7 Moodys-
A1 11/30/2012 500,000.00 517,745.00 2.375 503,225.00 0.980 6/30/2015 1.35

General Electric 
Capital Corp 
4.875 3/4/2015

36962GP65 Moodys-
A1 9/18/2013 1,000,000.00 1,059,830.00 4.875 1,000,000.00 0.750 3/4/2015 2.75

Internaltional 
Business Machs 
0.45 5/6/2016

459200HL8 Moodys-
Aa3 11/26/2013 1,000,000.00 996,840.00 0.450 999,780.00 0.580 5/6/2016 2.59

JP Morgan Chase 
2.6 1/15/2016 46625HHW3 Moodys-

A3 12/1/2014 566,000.00 577,518.10 2.600 574,843.75 0.775 1/15/2016 1.50

Page 20 of 62



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 
Cost

Next Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of 
Portfolio

JP Morgan Chase 
4.75 3/1/2015

46625HCE8 Moodys-
A3

1/2/2013 1,000,000.00 1,079,800.00 4.750 1,000,000.00 1.012 3/1/2015 2.81

Royal Bank of 
Canada 2.3 
7/20/2016

78008TLB8 Moodys-
Aa3 12/23/2014 1,190,000.00 1,217,310.50 2.300 1,215,430.30 0.830 7/20/2016 3.16

Well Fargo Bank
0.75 7/20/2015 94985H5F7 Moodys-

Aa3 3/31/2014 565,000.00 567,418.20 0.750 566,022.65 0.420 7/20/2015 1.47

Sub Total / 
Average 8,134,000.00 8,338,595.37 2.357 8,178,695.63 0.803 21.67

LAIF

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 None 4/30/2011 17,458,884.90 17,458,884.90 0.266 17,458,884.90 0.266 N/A N/A 45.37

Sub Total / 
Average 17,458,884.90 17,458,884.90 0.266 17,458,884.90 0.266 45.37

Treasury

T-Bond 0.25 
5/16/2016 912828VC1 Moodys-

Aaa 1/24/2014 1,000,000.00 994,530.00 0.250 998,593.70 0.488 5/16/2016 2.58

T-Note 0.375 
2/15/2016 912828UM0 Moodys-

Aaa 1/24/2014 1,000,000.00 999,530.00 0.375 1,001,170.00 0.398 2/15/2016 2.60

T-Note 0.5 
6/15/2016 912828VG2 Moodys-

Aaa 3/27/2014 1,000,000.00 999,530.00 0.500 1,001,250.00 0.521 6/15/2016 2.60

T-Note 1.375 
11/30/2015 912828PJ3 Moodys-

Aaa 12/20/2013 2,000,000.00 2,040,480.00 1.375 2,017,660.00 0.330 11/30/2015 5.30

Sub Total / 
Average 5,000,000.00 5,034,070.00 0.780 5,018,673.70 0.413 13.08

Total / 
Average 38,242,677.34 38,481,771.11 0.878 38,304,309.09 0.493 100

All investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance with the District's Investment Policy.
The District will meet its expenditure obligations for the next six months.
Market value sources are the LAIF, CAMP, and BNY Mellon monthly statments.

Page 21 of 62



Union Sanitary District
Board Report - Activity
Portfolio/Report Group: All Portfolios
From 2/1/2015 To 2/28/2015

Description CUSIP/Ticker
Face 

Amount/Shares Principal Interest/Dividends
Coupon 

Rate
YTM @ 
Cost

Settlement 
Date Total

BUY

Bank of China NY 0.5 2/4/2016 06426TCH0 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.00 0.500 0.500 2/4/2015 240,000.00

FHLMC 0.75 2/13/2017 3134G6BQ5 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.00 0.750 0.750 2/13/2015 1,000,000.00

FHLMC 0.9 5/26/2017-15 3134G6CE1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.00 0.900 0.900 2/26/2015 1,000,000.00

Santander Bank 0.5 2/4/2016 80280JDH1 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.00 0.500 0.500 2/4/2015 240,000.00

Sub Total / Average 2,480,000.00 2,480,000.00 0.00 2,480,000.00

DEPOSIT

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 0.48 0.48 0.00 0.000 2/28/2015 0.48

Sub Total / Average 0.48 0.48 0.00 0.48

INTEREST

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 0.00 0.00 0.48 0.000 2/28/2015 0.48

Great Midwest Bank 0.75 
7/27/2016 39083PCK6 0.00 0.00 152.88 0.750 0.000 2/27/2015 152.88

T-Note 0.375 2/15/2016 912828UM0 0.00 0.00 1,875.00 0.375 0.000 2/15/2015 1,875.00

Sub Total / Average 0.00 0.00 2,028.36 2,028.36

WITHDRAW

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 700,000.00 700,000.00 0.00 0.000 2/4/2015 700,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00 0.000 2/6/2015 500,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00 0.000 2/11/2015 500,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 1,400,000.00 1,400,000.00 0.00 0.000 2/12/2015 1,400,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00 0.000 2/20/2015 500,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 1,300,000.00 1,300,000.00 0.00 0.000 2/25/2015 1,300,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 1,300,000.00 1,300,000.00 0.00 0.000 2/27/2015 1,300,000.00

Page 22 of 62



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Face 

Amount/Shares Principal Interest/Dividends
Coupon 

Rate
YTM @ 
Cost

Settlement 
Date Total

Sub Total / Average 6,200,000.00 6,200,000.00 0.00 6,200,000.00

Page 23 of 62



MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 2015 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT WORK GROUP SUMMARY 

 
Capital Improvement Program 

 
Boyce Road Lift Station Project – Phase 2 – Construction Notice of Completion was recorded by the County on 
2/9/15. Contract retention funds will be released after 3/16/15. 
 
Cogeneration Project – Contractor completed the demolition of the existing gas conditioning equipment and 
pad, made the final connection to the existing underground digester gas pipeline, and completed backfill.  Final 
paving is scheduled in early March. 
 
Primary Digester No. 5 Rehabilitation Project – Contractor completed the roof foam installation, removed 
dome supports, and completed the installation of gas appurtenances and walkways.  The Digester to be placed 
back in service in early March.     
 
Thickener Control Building Improvements Project – Installation of Thickened Primary Sludge (TPS) pipelines 
underway.  Pipe installation and trench backfill to be completed by mid-March.  Factory testing for Motor 
Control Center MCC-31, MCC-32, and Progammable Logic Controler PLC-44 and PLC-45 has been completed.   
 
Upper Hetch Hetchy SS Rehabilitation – Punchlist and closeout work in progress, and should be completed in 
March. 
 

Customer Service 
Trouble Calls dispatched from the Front Desk during business hours: 

 Page 24 of 62



Sewer Permits Issued: 
 

Date Repair Mains New Laterals Restaurants Other 
February 2015 26 1 18 1 0 
January 2015 50 0 1 3 2 
December 2014 31 0 2 3 1 
New Laterals – New residential lateral connections 
Other – Non-residential construction (except restaurants) 

 
 
Communication & Graphics 

• Cogeneration Ribbon-Cutting Planning Team Leader activities 
• Open House Planning Team Leader activities 
• Public Website redesign – continued work with vendor and presented update at Managers’ meeting 
• Newsletter Board Workshop and continued project management 
• Designed Fact Sheet for GM/Director Handley’s Washington D.C. meetings 
• Union City Chamber of Commerce – Continued Board President activities, participated at City of 

Union City Economic Development monthly meeting 
• Website Updates: New financial information; updates to Environmental Compliance information 

 
 
Environmental Compliance 

 
Pollution Prevention Program 
 
USD’s Environmental Compliance team conducts pollution prevention inspections to restaurants, car wash 
business, and other commercial facilities. EC also conducts inspections and enforcement for the City of 
Fremont’s Environmental Services group. We conduct over 600 Stormwater compliance inspections every year 
to ensure that commercial facilities, including restaurants and auto shops, comply with City Ordinance 
requirements, and don’t discharge pollutants to the creeks and bay.  
 
For the past month the EC team conducted 101 Stormwater, and 49 FOG (restaurant) inspections. Inspectors 
identified 26 Stormwater and 16 FOG enforcement actions. Six of the Stormwater enforcements resulted in 
administrative fines ranging from $100 to $500. Most fines were for repeated violations within the same year, 
but two were for illicit discharges to Fremont’s storm drain system. 

 
Urban Runoff Inspections and Enforcements 

 
 

FOG Inspections and Enforcements 

 
Enforcements: 
VW –Verbal Warning   WL – Warning Letter   NOV – Notices of Violation 
AF – Administrative Fine  LA – Legal Action   NOD – Notice of Deficiency 
AO – Administrative Order  C&D – Cease & Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non Compliance 
 

  

February 
No. of UR 

Inspections VW WL NOV AF LA Total Enforcements No. of Illicit Discharge/s 2
2015 101 7 0 13 6 0 26 % enforcement 25.74%

February 
No. of FOG 
Inspections

VW WL NOV AF NOD Total Enforcements
% enforcement 32.65%

2015 49 7 9 0 0 0 16

Page 25 of 62



Dental Inspections, School Outreach and Plant Tours 
 

# of Dental Inspections # of School Outreach Events including        Sewer 
Science 

# of Plant Tours 

10 11 None 
 
Industrial Pretreatment  
 
The Industrial Pretreatment program has a number of pending permits as shown in the table below. USD 
inspectors are working with each of these companies to establish permitted industrial discharges. 
 

Pending Permits 
New Industrial/Groundwater Permits Groundwater/Temporary 
Silevo Inc Preston Pipelines for Washington Hospital (GW) 
De Anza Tile  
Seagate Technology, LLC MRC-2  
Ceramic Tech  
Mission Linen  
Gooch and Housego  

 
Permits Issued  

Company Name Date Permit Issued 
Preston Pipelines for Washington Hospital (GW) February 26, 2015 

 
Industrial Closures  

Company Name Date of Closure 
None  

 
Reports (Annual & Semi-Annual Pretreatment Report, Union City Report, etc.) 

Report Name Date Report Completed and Submitted 
2014 Annual Pretreatment Report Completed 2/25/15, Submitted 2/26/15 

 
Enforcement Action 

IU Name & 
Nature of 
Business 

Comments City 
 

Parameters 
Violated 

Discharge 
concentration 
(mg/L) 

USD/Fed Limit 
Violated 
(mg/L) 

Violation 
(1) 

Sterling Foods Required to 
perform violation 
follow-up 
monitoring.  Will 
meet to discuss 
treatment system 
options. 

UC pH 12.3 units USD Local Limit  NOV  

4343 Peralta 
Blvd. 

(Automotive 
Repair Facility) 

Unpermitted 
connection to the 
sanitary sewer 
system 

F Not 
Applicable 

Not Applicable  Not Applicable WL 

Page 26 of 62



IU Name & 
Nature of 
Business 

Comments City 
 

Parameters 
Violated 

Discharge 
concentration 
(mg/L) 

USD/Fed Limit 
Violated 
(mg/L) 

Violation 
(1) 

Stevenson Tire 
Service 
(Auto Service – 
Tires, Brakes, 
and Mufflers) 

Unpermitted 
connection to the 
sanitary sewer 
system 

F Not 
Applicable 

Not Applicable  Not Applicable WL 

Alviso Rock, 
Inc. 
(Auto Trucking) 

Unpermitted 
connection to the 
sanitary sewer 
system 

F Not 
Applicable 

Not Applicable  Not Applicable WL 

Alaniz 
Construction 
(Construction – 
Asphalt, 
Concrete, and 
Gravel) 

Unpermitted 
connection to the 
sanitary sewer 
system 

F Not 
Applicable 

Not Applicable  Not Applicable WL 

Del Conte 
Landscaping 
(Nursery and 
Landscaping 
Services) 

Unpermitted 
connection to the 
sanitary sewer 
system 

F Not 
Applicable 

Not Applicable  Not Applicable WL 

  (1) WL – Warning Letter  NOV – Notices of Violation  AO – Administrative Order 
 C&D – Cease and Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non Compliance EM – Enforcement Meeting 
 

Other - Team training, Special Meetings, Conferences, Special Recognition, IAC (topics) 
 

Activity Date of Event Attendees 
CWEA P3S 2/3/15 

2/2/15-2/3/15 
Alex Paredes,  
Michael Dunning 

 
 

Engineering/Construction 
 
No. of projects under construction: 5 
 

 Construction Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for  
February 2015 Activity 

1. Boyce Road LS Phase 2 – 
Thomas  

$330 12/9 100% 100% Notice of Completion 
was recorded by the 
County on 2/9/15. 
Retention will be 
released after 3/16/15. 

2. Cogeneration Project – 
Raymond 

$10,566 2/15 99% 100% Completed demolition 
of existing gas condi-
tioning equipment and 
pad, connected to the 
underground digester 
gas pipeline, and back-
filled. 

Page 27 of 62



 Construction Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for  
February 2015 Activity 

3. Thickener Control Building 
Improvements Project – 
Curtis 

$9,990 9/16 25% 29% Installation of TPS 
pipeline is currently 
underway. Factory 
testing for electrical 
equipment has been 
completed. 

4. Upper Hetch Hetchy SS 
Rehabilitation – Chris E. 

$2,971 1/15 100% 94% Complete punchlist and 
closeout in progress. 

5. Primary Digester No. 5 
Rehabilitation Project - 
Chris P. 

$779 12/14 98% 100% Completed foam 
installation.  Removed 
dome supports and 
completed the 
installation of gas 
appurtenances and 
walkways.   

 
 

Design/Study 
 

No. of projects in design/study phase: 16 
 

 Design/Study Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for 
February 2015 Activity 

1. Irvington Basin Master 
Plan Update – Capacity 
Assessment - Rollie 

$231 6/15 
 

27% 67% Completed wet 
weather monitoring. 

2. Local Limits and 
Wastewater Treatability 
Study – Michael D. 

$107 6/15 98% 100% Project has been 
completed. Awaiting 
final invoices if any 
from RMC. 

3. Seismic Study - Raymond $210 6/15 70% 70% Continued with the 
detailed seismic 
evaluations of four 
structures. 

4. Cast Iron Lining Phase VI – 
Andrew 

In-
House 

12/14 100% 100% Design has been 
completed.  

5. Miscellaneous Spot Re-
pairs Phase VI – Andrew 

In-
House 

4/15 98% 80% 90% drawings in 
progress by CIP Engr 
Tech. Still waiting for 
ACWD review 
comments. 

6. Alvarado-Niles Road SS 
Rehabilitation – Chris E. 

$248 4/15 90% 82% 90% design submittal 
and staff review 
completed. 

7. Pine St. Easement 
Improvements –  
Chris E. 

$59 5/15 42% 42% Agency coordination, 
permitting, alternative 
evaluation, and 50% 
design in progress. 

Page 28 of 62



 Design/Study Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for 
February 2015 Activity 

8. Plant Site Use Study – 
Curtis 

$200 6/15 67% 62% Study in progress; draft 
report to be completed 
in March. 

9. MCC and PLC 
Replacement Project, 
Phase 3 – Chris P. 

$78 6/15 60% 60% Completed PLC 7 
Input/Output (I/O) 
restrictions list.   

10. Generator Controls 
Upgrade Project – Chris P. 

$72 6/15 40% 40% Conducted the first 
alternatives develop-
ment work shop.  
Beecher Engineering 
presented 3 alter-
natives to discuss and 
refine.   

11. Plant Facilities 
Improvements Project – 
Thomas 

$55 6/15 20% 20% Staff is reviewing the 
preliminary estimate to 
determine which project 
elements will move 
forward to the detailed 
design phase 

12. Plant Lighting Study – 
Thomas 

$50 3/15 90% 90% Consultant is analyzing 
gathered data and 
working on the draft 
lighting study report. 
The report is expected 
to be submitted in 
early March 2015.  

13. Administrative and Field 
Operations Buildings Leak 
Investigation – Chris P. 

$51 10/14 100% 100% Awaiting seismic 
review of admin 
building before 
proceeding with repair 
alternatives.   

14. Pump Station Master Plan 
– Raymond 

$175 7/15 20% 20% Consultant conducted 
condition assessment 
of several pump and lift 
stations.  Continued 
with data gathering of 
facilities. 

15. Newark Backyard SS 
Relocation – Phase 2 – 
Rollie/Al B. 

$200 3/15 100% 100% Advertised for bid on 
3/3.  Bid opening 
scheduled for 3/31. 

16. Aeration Blower Project – 
Chris P. 

$96 7/15 10% 10% Under design. 

 

Page 29 of 62



COLLECTION SERVICES  
ACTIVITIES REPORT 

January and February 2015  

    
Progress/Accomplishments     
           

 Completed over 22 miles of cleaning and over 5 miles of televising of sewer lines in January 

 Completed over 11 miles of cleaning and over 14 miles of televising of sewer lines in February 

 Responded to 37 service request calls in January and 23 in February 

 Completed a total of 39 main repairs in January and 38 in February 

 Marked and located all sewer lines (Underground Service Alerts) 

 Provided support on the following projects: Upper Hetch Hetcy Trunk Line Lining, Newark Backyard Lateral 
Relocation, Alvarado Site Use Study. 

 Participated in a BACWA Collection Services Meeting 

 Participated in a CSOTF Benchmarking meeting 

 Participated in the CASSE General Meeting 

 Continued training of 4 Collection System Worker I employees 

 Continued on our progress on catching up on 72 Month Cleaning and Inspection PMP 

 Participated in a Benchmarking meeting with CASSE 

 Rich Czapkay was hired as CS Coach 

 Assisted in Technical Certification Training for the CWEA. 

 Anthony Dejesus passed his CWEA Grade 2 in Collection Systems Operation 
 
Training for Collections included;  

Training for SOP’s on Trench Shoring, Ladder Use, SSO Response and Trouble Calls.  Skid Steer  Loader Training and 
assessments for 9 employees. First Aid & CPR training for 10 employees. 
 
Future Planning 
 

 Continue effort of to catch up on 72 Month Cleaning and Inspection PMP 
 
Performance Measures 
 

 
 

Page 30 of 62



 
 

               Other Collection Services Status Data: 
 
Support Team Work Order Status: 
 

         

C/S Maintenance Status: 
   

   

Page 31 of 62



l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l Three mechanics attended maintenance conference in Knoxville, Tennessee.

Completed 98% preventive maintenance activities for the month of February.

Completed 104 corrective maintenance work orders for the month of February.

Removed and overhauled Alvarado Pump #1.

Created a new SCADA view to show data from Cogeneration System.

Repaired variable frequency drive for #2 pump at Newark Pump Station.

                FMC 

                 Activities Report

              February 2015

Progress/Accomplishments

Cogeneration factory training in Jenbach, Austria.

Performance Measurements

Future Planning

Finish installing new air compressors in Alvarado Pump Station.

Replace coolant jumper tubes on Generators 5&6.

Other

Install and test Alvarado Pump #1.

0

5

10

15

20

Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15

N
o

. o
f 

W
O

s 

Priority A Repairs Required 

Total Target

Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Page 32 of 62



0

25

50

75

100

125

150
N

o
.  

o
f 

 W
O

s 
Number of Work Orders Initiated & Completed Within Month 

Initiated Completed

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

N
o

. o
f 

W
O

s 

Number of Work Orders over 90 Days 

# WO's Target

Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Page 33 of 62









































Schedule a meeting with the Regional Board to discuss progress with the Hayward Marsh 
Rehabilitation Study.

Provide operational data for the Irvington Basin Master Plan.

Schedule a site visit for the BACWA Nutrient reduction study as required under the Nutrient 
Watershed permit.

Future Planning

Research opportunities for testing digester enzymes to increase digester gas production at the 
treatment plant.

Prepare the NACWA Peak Performance award application.

Cogen system produced 77% of power consumed for the month of February.

Schedule a follow-up meeting with Kruger to discuss details of the Anitammox study project that 
can be presented publicly.

Other

Conducted research into the source of digester foaming currently ongoing at treatment plant 
anaerobic digesters No. 2 and No. 4.

Prepare for the ELAP recertification of the treatment plant laboratory.

Held an options workshop as part of the Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation Options Study.

Submitted application for renewal of the Old Alameda Creek NPDES permit reissuance.

Participated in the CIP site use study.

Provide operational data for cogeneration evaluation for the SGIP grant.

Participated in the recruitment and QAI for new TPO Coach.

Treatment & Disposal
Activities Report

February 2015

Progress/Accomplishments

Completed 99% preventive maintenance activities for the month of February.

Attended a BAB2E presentation on a biosolids pyrolysis system being demonstrated at SCVCWA.

Prepared two technical submittals for the BACWA Nutrient Reduction Study required under the 
nutrient watershed permit.
Submited the 2014 Annual NPDES Report for the Old Alameda Creek.

Submitted response letter to the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) for a residual 
chlorine excursion in December 2014.

Page 34 of 62



Performance Measurements

18

20

22

24

26

28

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

M
G

D

m
g/

l

Lab Results and Effluent Flow

EFF SS CBOD Flow MGD

29%

67% 69% 74% 77%

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15

kW
h 

/1
00

00

Pe
rc

en
t P

ro
du

ce
d

Cogen Power Produced

Percent Produced kWh/10000

Page 35 of 62



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
 
 
Date: March 17, 2015 
 
To: Board of Directors-Union Sanitary District 
 
From: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 
Subject:  Agenda Item 8 - Meeting of March 23, 2015 

Resolution No. ____, Accept the Construction of the Primary Digester No. 5 
Rehabilitation Project from D.W. Nicholson Corporation and Authorize the Attorney 
for the District to Record a Notice of Completion (to be reviewed by the Construction 
Committee) 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The contractor submitted a last minute time extension request for the Project.  District staff was unable 
to evaluate said request due to incomplete information from the contractor.  After the Committee 
Notice was posted, it was determined the item would not be considered for acceptance at this time.   

Page 36 of 62



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
 
 
Date: March 17, 2015 
 
To: Board of Directors-Union Sanitary District 
 
From: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Judi Berzon, Human Resources Administrator 
 
Subject:  Agenda Item 9 - Meeting of March 23, 2015 

Resolution No. ____, Approve Exception to the 180-Day Wait Period 
For Post-Retirement Employment for Andy Morrison (to be reviewed  
by the Personnel Committee) 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve the Resolution for Exception to the 180-Day Wait Period and letter of appointment of Stuart A. 
(Andy) Morrison to the position of Limited Term Trainer/Adviser to the Manager, Collection Services. 
 
Background: 
 
The recruitment for the Collection Services Workgroup Manager, was conducted shortly after the 
selection of the District’s new General Manager.  The candidate selected to fill this executive-level 
vacancy was James Schofield, who previously held the position of Collections Services Coach.  His 
appointment was effective December 1, 2014, which meant that James had less than three weeks to be 
mentored by the retiring CS Manager, Andy Morrison, who retired effective December 30, 2014. 
 
Given the scope of responsibilities, it is critical that there be sufficient time for the retiring Manager and 
the new Manager to work together to ensure that essential knowledge transfer occurs.  This knowledge 
transfer optimally occurs at the beginning of the new Manager’s tenure rather than many months after 
appointment; however, due to the timing of the scheduled December 2014 retirement of Andy 
Morrison, there was insufficient time for optimal knowledge transfer between the incoming and retiring 

Page 37 of 62



Page 2 
Board Meeting of March 23, 2015 
Agenda Item 9 

CS Managers.  The request to appoint Andy to this Limited Term position would have been made shortly 
following his retirement; however, CalPERS prohibits any appointments of retirees under normal 
retirement age (55) until 60 days following their retirement.  This requirement has now been met. 
 
At the District, the Work Group Managers, along with the General Manager, comprise the Executive 
Team (ET).  The ET is responsible for long-range planning activities, including development and 
monitoring of the District’s Strategic Plan, development of the budget, succession planning, policy 
development and implementation, employee safety, employee development, and many other District-
wide activities.  In addition, the Work Group Manager has overall responsibility for the management of 
the Work Group and its employees. 
 
Retirement law allows for an agency to waive the 180 day wait period that typically elapses prior to a 
retired “annuitant’s” (employee) returning to temporary employment for the purpose of performing a 
special project/assignment.  This is the resolution that the Board is being asked to approve.  It is 
anticipated that the length of the appointment will be approximately one to two months, one to three 
days per week, which should be sufficient to allow for effective knowledge transfer.   
 

Page 38 of 62



 
 

Retiree Certification of Compliance 
with Unemployment Insurance Payment Requirements 

 

Name of CalPERS Retired Annuitant (please print):        

 

I hereby certify that I have received no unemployment insurance compensation arising 
out of prior employment subject to Section 21224 of California Public Employees’ 
Retirement Law during the 12-month period prior to my limited duration appointment to 
the position of Limited Term Trainer/Adviser to the Manager, Collection Services, which 
will commence on March 27, 2015. 

 

             
Retiree’s Signature       Date 

Page 39 of 62



 

Resolution No. _______ 
 

RESOLUTION FOR EXCEPTION TO THE 180-DAY WAIT PERIOD 
GC sections 7522.56 & 21221(h) 

 
WHEREAS, in compliance with Government Code section 7522.56 the Union Sanitary District 
Board of Directors must provide CalPERS this certification resolution when hiring a retiree 
before 180 days has passed since his or her retirement date; and 

 
WHEREAS, Stuart A. Morrison, SSN last four digits 0199, retired from Union Sanitary 
District in the position of Manager, Collection Services, effective December 30, 2014; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, section 7522.56 requires that post-retirement employment commence no earlier 
than 180 days after the retirement date, which is June 29, 2015 without this certification 
resolution; and 

 
WHEREAS, section 7522.56 provides that this exception to the 180 day wait period shall not 
apply if the retiree accepts any retirement-related incentive; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors, the Union Sanitary District, and Stuart A. Morrison, certify 
that Stuart A. Morrison has not and will not receive a Golden Handshake or any other 
retirement-related incentive; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors hereby appoints Stuart A. Morrison as an interim 
appointment retired annuitant to the vacant position of Limited Term Trainer/Advisor to the 
Manager, Collection Services for the Union Sanitary District under Government Code section 
21221(h), effective (date of appointment); and 

 
WHEREAS, the entire employment agreement, contract or appointment document between 
Stuart A. Morrison and the Union Sanitary District has been reviewed by this body and is 
attached herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, no matters, issues, terms or conditions related to this employment and 
appointment have been or will be placed on a consent calendar; and 
 
WHEREAS, the employment shall be limited to 960 hours per fiscal year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the compensation paid to retirees cannot be less than the minimum nor exceed 
the maximum monthly base salary paid to other employees performing comparable duties, 
divided by 173.333 to equal the hourly rate; and 

 
WHEREAS, the maximum base salary for this position is $188,669.6074 and the hourly 
equivalent is $90.7065, and the minimum base salary for this position is $143,748.2723 and 
the hourly equivalent is $69.1097; and 

  

Page 40 of 62



WHEREAS, the hourly rate paid to Stuart A. Morrison will be $90.7065; and 
 
WHEREAS, Stuart A. Morrison has not and will not receive any other benefit, incentive, 
compensation in lieu of benefit or other form of compensation in addition to this hourly pay 
rate; and 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors hereby certifies the nature of 
the appointment of Stuart A. Morrison as described herein and detailed in the attached 
employment agreement/contract/appointment document and that this appointment is 
necessary to fill the critically needed position of Limited Term Trainer/Adviser for the Union 
Sanitary District by March 27, 2015 because Mr. Morrison has unique knowledge based on 
his tenure as Manager, Collection Services and is needed to train and mentor his replacement 
in the numerous, high-level responsibilities of the Manager, Collection Services as the new 
Manager assumes his duties. 

 
On a motion duty made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the following vote on 
March 23, 2015: 
 
 AYES: 
 
 NOES: 
 
 ABSENT: 
 
 ABSTAIN: 
 
       _________________________ 
       MANNY FERNANDEZ 
       President, Board of Directors 
       Union Sanitary District 
 
Attest: 
 

 
_________________________ 
TOM HANDLEY 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 

 
 
 
 
 

2 

Page 41 of 62



 

 

 

March 24, 2015 

 

Mr. Andy Morrison 
800 Cole Road 
Aromas, CA  95004 
 
Email address:  stuartandrewmorrison@gmail.com 
 
Dear Andy: 
 
I am writing to offer you the position of Limited Term Trainer/Adviser to the Manager, Collection 
Services (CS) beginning March 27, 2015. In this capacity you will provide training and mentoring 
to the new CS Manager, James Schofield.  As you know, because James was appointed shortly 
before your retirement from the District, you were unable to provide sufficient assistance of this 
type prior to your final day at the District. The “knowledge transfer” that will be accomplished 
through your work with James will be invaluable to him and will greatly benefit the District. 
 
It is anticipated that the length of your appointment will be approximately two to three months, 
one to three days per week. Your hourly rate of pay will be $90.7065, which is based on the top 
of the salary range for Manager, Collection Services.  
 
You will receive no other compensation, benefit, or incentive in addition to your hourly pay rate 
during this special assignment. Social Security contributions will be deducted from your paycheck. 
Additionally, as a retired annuitant appointed pursuant to California Government Code Section 
21224, you may not work more than 960 hours in a fiscal year. This 960 hour cap is a hard limit 
and will be tracked in the District’s payroll system. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/District Engineer 
 
cc: Personnel file 

Page 42 of 62



Check No. Date Invoice No.

156989 3/12/2015 4344

3/12/2015 4345

156969 3/12/2015 13730

156957 3/12/2015 61718

156886 3/5/2015 201502

156891 3/5/2015 19317

3/5/2015 19329

156925 3/12/2015 139788

3/12/2015 139784

156981 3/12/2015 533620150223

156857 3/5/2015 1102222C

3/5/2015 1102222A

156924 3/12/2015 11235143

3/12/2015 11235141

156936 3/12/2015 8656

156912 3/5/2015 2026658

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

2/28/2015-3/13/2015

Vendor

WONDRIES FLEET GROUP

SAK CONSTRUCTION LLC

PAC MACHINE COMPANY INC

NICHOLAS J PEROS

RMC WATER AND ENVIRONMENT

CAROLLO ENGINEERS

US BANK CORP PAYMENT SYSTEM

DELTA DENTAL SERVICE

BROWN & CALDWELL CONSULTANTS

FOLGER GRAPHICS

WEST YOST & ASSOCIATES

Description

1 2013 FORD F650 6.7L TRUCK

1 2013 FORD F650 6.7L TRUCK

UPPER HETCH HETCHY SS REHABILITATION

1 GODWIN PUMP 6 INCH

SCADA MASTER PLAN & SCADA STANDARDS

HAYWARD MARSH REHABILITATION OPTIONS

ALVARADO TREATMENT PLANT SITE USE STUDY

THICKENER CONROL BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS PHASE II

PUMP STATION MASTER PLAN PROJECT

MONTHLY CAL-CARD STMT - FEB 2015

FEBRUARY 2015 DENTAL

FEBRUARY 2015 DENTAL

ALVARADO POTABLE WATER TANK/USE STUDY

UPPER HETCH HECTCHY SS REHABILITATION

POSTAGE FOR DISTRICT NEWSLETTER POSTCARD

NEWARK BACKYARD SS RELOCATION - PHASE 2

Page 1 of 13

Invoice Amt

$156,515.33

SI 56.515.33

$161.300.50

$61,896.50

$61,002.31

$17,578.25

S33.264.90

$32,757.70

$4,496.31

$32,810.45

$21,753.80

$2,784.48

$5,083.07

$17,486.20

$19,204.87

$19,197.21

Check Amt

$313,030.66

$161,300.50

$61,896.50

$61,002.31

$50,843.15

$37,254.01

$32,810.45

$24,538.28

$22,569.27

$19,204.87

$19,197.21

Page 43 of 62



Check No. Date Invoice No.

156965 3/12/2015 19379

3/12/2015 19383

156933 3/12/2015 XJMNN3W52

156838 3/5/2015 63218

156958 3/12/2015 761520150226

156948 3/12/2015 10924853

156934 3/12/2015 13743

156904 3/5/2015 13649

156906 3/5/2015 1410141

156959 3/12/2015 20150305

156875 3/5/2015 37432220150301

156908 3/5/2015 667408

3/5/2015 667463

3/5/2015 667801

156960 3/12/2015 947756

156872 3/5/2015 9017434254

156919 3/12/2015 5112108

3/12/2015 5112276

3/12/2015 5112176

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

2/28/2015-3/13/2015

Vendor

RMC WATER AND ENVIRONMENT

DELL MARKETING LP C/O DELL USA

3T EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC

KRONOS INC

EEC ENVIRONMENTAL INC

TRC ENERGY SERVICES INC

TRIMARK ASSOCIATES INC

PANG K. CHOY & MEI XUE LU

LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS COMP

UNIVAR USA INC

POLYDYNEINC

KEMIRA WATER SOLUTIONS. INC.

ALL INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY

Description

LOCAL LIMITS & WASTEWATER TREATABILITY

OLD ALAMEDA CREEK NPDES PERMIT RENEWAL

FY15 Q2 STANDARD DESKTOPS

25 PIPEPATCH KITS, 10 MANHOLE HOOKS & 2 WHEEL KITS

SERV TO 02/26/15 NEWARK PS

PROJECT MGMT. ASSESSMENT MTGS & DESIGN DOCUME

CWT & PRETREATMENT PROGRAM ASSISTANCE

PLANT-WIDE LIGHTING STUDY

COGENERATION PROJECT

SEWER SERVICE CHARGE REFUND

LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE - MAR 2015

5.023 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5.063 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5.022 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

42.240 LBS CLARIFLOC WE-539

7.88 DRY TONS FERROUS CHLORIDE

4 OVERLOADS & RELAYS FOR APS COMPRESSORS

2 CUTLER HAMMERS

5 WELDING PLUGS & 10 RECEPTACLES

Page 2 of 13

Invoice Amt

$1,089.50

$14,401.00

$14,078.08

$13,630.74

$13,577.06

$11,970.00

$11,784.24

$9,997.04

$9,584.80

S8.878.63

$7,456.18

$2,321.62

$2,340.11

$2,321.18

$5,550.34

$5,153.52

$781.83

$652.62

$3,701.10

Check Amt

$15,490.50

$14,078.08

$13,630.74

S13,577.06

S11,970.00

$11,784.24

$9,997.04

$9,584.80

$8,878.63

S7.456.18

S6.982.91

$5,550.34

$5,153.52

$5,135.55

Page 44 of 62



Check No. Date

156909 3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

156914

156947

156979

156860

156976

156903

156962

156888

156874

156884

156946

156910

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/5/2015

3/12/2015

3/5/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/12/2015

3/5/2015

Invoice No.

29311

29316

29081

63232

9017434940

668673

668439

53425

130740

5776

117135

117139

140309

7441

7083

7498

20150301

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

2/28/2015-3/13/2015

Vendor

VALLEY OIL COMPANY

3T EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC

KEMIRA WATER SOLUTIONS. INC.

UNIVAR USA INC

ENTERPRISE ROOFING SERVICES

TOTAL WASTE SYSTEMS INC

STUDIO 02 INC

R-2 ENGINEERING INC

RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS

LEMON WING CORP DBA WINGSTOP

OUR LADY OF GUADALUPE CHURCH

ERWIN ILAO

VISION SERVICE PLAN - CA

Description

1 DR ALLIANCE AW 46

1 DR MOBIL SHC 626 OIL

1 DRUM SHELL PELLA A OIL

13 PIPEPATCH KIT - WINTER

7.31 DRY TONS FERROUS CHLORIDE

5,002 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5.002 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

ROOF SERVICE

FEBRUARY 2015 GRIT DISPOSAL

REFUND #17881

1 STATOR C320GQ

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

SSC COST OF SERVICE STUDY

REFUND #17853

REFUND* 17879

REFUND* 17901

MARCH 2015 VISION STMT

Page 3 of 13

Invoice Amt

$901.22

$2,706.04

S1.329.77

$4,868.37

$4,780.74

$2,311.92

S2.311.92

$4,210.00

$3,799.38

S3.710.20

$2,867.14

$718.33

$3,325.20

$3,300.00

$3,300.00

$3,300.00

$3,204.93

Check Amt

$4,937.03

$4,868.37

S4.780.74

S4.623.84

$4,210.00

$3,799.38

$3,710.20

$3,585.47

S3.325.20

$3,300.00

$3,300.00

$3,300.00

S3.204.93

Page 45 of 62



Check No. Date

156927 3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

156942 3/12/2015

156913 3/5/2015

156867 3/5/2015

156922 3/12/2015

156907 3/5/2015

156926 3/12/2015

Invoice No.

54413768

54407077

54411533

54411542

54411541.0

54411534

54411541

54413769

54407076

54409325

54409324

54413770

20150309

3422236

7757

7603

125795344001

140006

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

2/28/2015-3/13/2015

Vendor

CINTAS CORPORATION

WILLIAM HARRIS

WESTERN ENERGY SYSTEMS

HBDT CONSTRUCTION INC

BIG D PACIFIC BUILDERS

UNITED RENTALS NORTHWEST INC

CAROLLO ENGINEERS

Description

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

2 RED KAP SLASH POCKET JACKET - FULKERSON

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

1 WINDBREAKER - COFFEE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWELS

COMPUTER NOTE

1 SPARK PLUG SET

REFUND #17874

REFUND* 17898

FORKLIFT VAR REACH 6000# 4 WEEK RENTAL

FREMONT & PASEO PADRE LS IMPROVEMENTS

Page 4 of 13

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$319.76 S3.009.57

S332.95

$127.30

$470.22

$-72.03

S289.57

$339.20

$147.73

$350.17

$309.46

$307.24

$88.00

S2.896.91 $2,896.91

S2.658.69 S2.658.69

$2,500.00 $2,500.00

$2,500.00 S2.500.00

$2,472.59 $2,472.59

$2,329.85 $2,329.85

Page 46 of 62



Check No. Date

156911 3/5/2015

3/5/2015

156950 3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

156975 3/12/2015

156963 3/12/2015

3/12/2015

156935 3/12/2015

156842 3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

Invoice No.

33293

33292

24389658

24535316

24767074

25064824

24970792

24754146

2226

916002338752

916002335675

20150305 PAULELDREDGE

4104550220150218 ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

4104560920150218

4104560820150218

4104560720150219

4104550320150218

4104983520150218

4104550420150218

Vendor

WECO INDUSTRIES LLC

MCMASTER SUPPLY INC

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

2/28/2015-3/13/2015

TNT SAFETY ENTERPRISES INC

REPUBLIC SERVICES #916

Description

REPAIR OF OZIII CAMERA

REPAIR OF OZIII CAMERA

3 EA OIL-LEVEL INDICATORS

4 EA EXTENDED-LIFE SEALED LEAD-ACID BATTERIES

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

13 PACKS ASTD SCREWS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

1 EA PRECISE ADJUSTMENT CABLE TIE TENSIONING TOOl

2 DAY FA/CPR/AED TRAINING

RECYCLE & ROLL OFF - FEBRUARY 2015

ROLL OFF ON CALL - FEBRUARY 2015

TRAVEL REIMB: CASA CONF MEALS/LODGING/TRANSPOR-

SERVTO: 02/13/15-MTR HYD 19866550

SERV TO: 02/13/15-MTR HYD 19866549

SERV TO: 02/13/15-MTR HYD B33476241

SERV TO: 02/19/15-MTR HYD B32896064

SERV TO: 02/13/15-MTR HYD 29389772

SERV TO: 02/13/15-MTR HYD 19866540

SERV TO: 02/13/15-MTR HYD 29389774

Page 5 of 13

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$757.62 S2.220.88

$1,463.26

S47.49

$176.33

$900.03

S41.28

$628.44

$291.14

$1,800.00

$1,483.03

$220.32

$1,680.47

S217.69

$102.70

$144.86

$564.51

$148.70

$378.68

$102.70

S2.084.71

$1,800.00

$1,703.35

S1.680.47

$1,659.84

Page 47 of 62



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

2/28/2015-3/13/2015

Iheck No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

156954 3/12/2015 20150227 NAPA AUTO PARTS

156970 3/12/2015 20858 SERVICEWRKX

3/12/2015 21139

3/12/2015 20872

156944 3/12/2015 997720150225 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

156990 3/12/2015 4011 ZELAYA DESIGNS

3/12/2015 4012

156879 3/5/2015 24110028 MCMASTER SUPPLY INC

3/5/2015 24110027

3/5/2015 23951351

3/5/2015 23806778

3/5/2015 24030556

3/5/2015 23734827

156984 3/12/2015 900118 VINCENT ELECTRIC MOTOR CO

156843 3/5/2015 8480052731 ANDRITZ SEPARATION INC

156956 3/12/2015 42405465 OFFICE TEAM

156938 3/12/2015 1841069905 GOODYEAR COMM TIRE & SERV (

3/12/2015 1841070147

156844 3/5/2015 804966200 AT&T

Description

MONTHLY AUTO PARTS STMT - FEB 2015

SERVICE REQUEST: FIELD OPS BLDG UNIT DOWN

SERVICE REQUEST: BLDG 83 INVESTIGATE VAV OPERATIC

SERVICE REQUEST: REPLACE ENTHALPY SENSOR

MONTHLY HARDWARE STMT - FEB 2015

USD NEWSLETTER

USD NEWSLETTER

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PIPE FITTINGS & COUPLINGS

2EAV-BELTS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

10 PACKS BLANK ENGRAVING & STAMPING TAGS

APS PUMP #1 MOTOR INSPECTION

1 CYLINDER ROLLER BEARING FOR CENTRIFUGE 1

TEMP LABOR-BLANCHETTE, V., WKEND 02/13/15

2 EA TIRES

1 EA TIRE

SERV: 02/10/15-03/09/15

Page 6 of 13

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$1,617.19 $1,617.19

$375.00 $1,493.62

$450.00

$668.62

$1,412.73 $1,412.73

$610.00 $1,407.00

$797.00

$549.82 $1,362.70

S127.97

$88.51

$18.43

$491.28

$86.69

$1,308.08 $1,308.08

$1,305.37 $1,305.37

$1,245.79 $1.245.79

S793.90 $1,193.58

S399.68

$1,178.56 $1,178.56

Page 48 of 62



Check No. Date Invoice No.

156869 3/5/2015 9565

156949 3/12/2015 97148

156991 3/12/2015 6975

156899 3/5/2015 445.2

156952 3/12/2015 36633

3/12/2015 36613

156921 3/12/2015 6245765

3/12/2015 6254938

3/12/2015 6259035

3/12/2015 6258906

156855 3/5/2015 253555

3/5/2015 253550

156955 3/12/2015 590920150204

156971 3/12/2015 8122768022615

3/12/2015 4868173022615

156877 3/5/2015 20150303

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

2/28/2015-3/13/2015

Vendor

HUBER TECHNOLOGY INC

MCINERNEY & DILLON. P.C.

LYNN ZENG

SCHEIDEGGER & ASSOCIATES

METROMOBILE COMMUNICATIONS INC

AT&T

CURTIS & TOMPKINS LTD

NEWARK CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

SIERRA SPRING WATER COMPANY

MATTHEW LUBINA

Description

HEADWORKS WASHER COMPACTOR ROTARY UNION

LEGAL SRVS - RENEWABLE ENERGY TEST CTR AGMT REX

REFUND #17894

STEVENSON COMMUNICATION TOWER PROJECT

1 EA REPLACMENT RADIO FOR C. BOSICK

1 EA RADIO EQUIPMENT CARRYING CASE

SERV: 01/13/15-02/12/15

SERV: 01/13/15-02/12/15

SERV: 01/13/15-02/12/15

SERV: 01/13/15-02/12/15

4 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

6 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL FEE - 4/1/15 - 4/1/16

BOTTLESS COOLERS RENTAL

WATER SERVICE 01/30/15 - 02/26/15

EXP REIMB: CWEA CONF REGIS FEE & AIRFARE

Page 7 of 13

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$1,160.70 $1,160.70

$1,050.00 $1,050.00

$1,000.00 $1,000.00

$960.00 S960.00

$852.68 $935.86

$83.18

$725.49 S905.36

S96.13

$41.87

$41.87

$630.00 $895.00

$265.00

S880.00 $880.00

$239.00 S878.76

$639.76

S859.20 $859.20

Page 49 of 62



Check No.

156863

Date

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/12/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

156883

156894

156850

156987

156841

156851

156940

156928

156892

156898

156845

Invoice No.

9646021288

9648082940

9848082957

9646021270

42347227

42310480

7558961500

20150226

33471

9036172927

11234437

15540303

44079435

1160693

1632748003

1635905001

1632748002

1632748004

87896581202252015 AT&T

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

2/28/2015-3/13/2015

Vendor

GRAINGER INC

OFFICE TEAM

RS HUGHES CO INC

LAURIE BRENNER

WECO INDUSTRIES LLC

AIRGAS NCN

BROWN & CALDWELL CONSULTANTS

HANSON AGGREGATES INC

CINTAS FIRE PROTECTION

ROCHESTER MIDLAND CORPORATION

SAN LEANDRO ELECTRIC SUPPLY

Description

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

1 EA CUSTOM DIPPER

10 EA FACESHIELDS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

TEMP LABOR-BLANCHETTE. V.. WKEND 02/08/15

TEMP LABOR-BLANCHETTE, V., WKEND 01/30/15

ASTD SAFETY SUPPLIES

TRAVEL REIMB: UTILITY MANGMNTCONF - LODGING/MEA!

REPAIR OF OZIII CAMERA

2CYLARGON

ODOR CONTROL STUDY UPDATE

9.92 TONS 1/2 MED TYPE A

TROUBLESHOOT & BENCH TEST SIGNAL DEVICES

HOT WATER LOOP SERVICE

200 NYLON BLACK CABLE TIES

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

30 RIGID CONDUIT CLAMPS WITH NUT & BOLT

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

SERV: 01/18/15 - 02/17/15

Page 8 of 13

Invoice Amt Check Ann

$219.98 $856.39

$79.99

$259.90

$296.52

$317.65 $856.37

S538.72

$816.69 $816.69

$810.27 $810.27

$807.05 $807.05

$797.69 $797.69

$764.03 $764.03

$743.45 $743.45

S693.48 S693.48

$685.90 $685.90

$167.87 $679.86

S56.42

$196.92

$258.65

S675.71 $675.71

Page 50 of 62



Check No. Date Invoice No.

156870 3/5/2015 1013212

156920 3/12/2015 7004432825

156977 3/12/2015 32C2W9VN

156880 3/5/2015 641201070

156974 3/12/2015 20069816

156941 3/12/2015 311381

3/12/2015 311481

156878 3/5/2015 20150302

156839 3/5/2015 7756

156854 3/5/2015 7524

156859 3/5/2015 7719

156873 3/5/2015 7738

156887 3/5/2015 7681

156937 3/12/2015 7586

156931 3/12/2015 20150309

156953 3/12/2015 677300

156943 3/12/2015 18319

156982 3/12/2015 29333

156915 3/12/2015 1550977

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

2/28/2015-3/13/2015

Vendor

INDUSTRIAL SAFETY SUPPLY

APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGY

TOWN & COUNTRY RESORT

METTLER-TOLEDO INC

TELEDYNE INSTRUMENTS INC

HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS

REGINA MCEVOY

ABOVE ALL PLUMBING. INC.

DONALD CRISP

DRAINLINE SEWER SPECIALIST

KING TRENCHLESS

PLUMBING TECH INC

FREMONT HOMES AND LOANS INC

CWEA-NRTC

MOBILE MODULAR MANAGEMENT CORP

HAYWARD PIPE AND SUPPLY

VALLEY OIL COMPANY

ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS INC

Description

ASTD CALIBRATION GAS FOR ELECTRICIANS

ASTD BELTS. BATTERIES

CWEA ANNUAL CONFERENCE LODGING - PADILLA

METTLER BALANCE CALIBRATION & PREVENTATIVE MAIN"

30 POLYPROPYLENE BOTTLES WITH CAP

ASTD PVC FITTINGS

ASTD PVC FITTINGS

EXP REIMB: CSDA BOARD SECRETARY/CLERK CONF. SAN

REFUND #17875

REFUND #17655

REFUND* 17872

REFUND #17873

REFUND #17878

REFUND # 17905

CONF REG: D. CHRISTOPHER

FMC TRAILER RENTAL - MAR 2015

ASTD GALV PIPE FITTINGS, VALVES

1 DR ALLIANCE AW 46

BACK FLOW TEST FOR SFPUC AT NEWARK PS

Page 9 of 13

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$642.00 $642.00

$632.31 $632.31

$570.83 $570.83

$570.00 $570.00

$549.14 $549.14

$510.75 $525.70

$14.95

$500.41 $500.41

$500.00 $500.00

$500.00 $500.00

$500.00 $500.00

$500.00 $500.00

$500.00 $500.00

$500.00 $500.00

$475.00 S475.00

$467.57 $467.57

$460.13 $460.13

$450.61 $450.61

$400.00 S400.00

Page 51 of 62



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

2/28/2015-3/13/2015

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

156866 3/5/2015 1537832 HANSON AGGREGATES INC

156973 3/12/2015 40698 SPECTER INSTRUMENTS INC

156849 3/5/2015 10596350 BLAISDELL'S

3/5/2015 10601840

3/5/2015 10597480

3/5/2015 10597440

156848 3/5/2015 17602300 BECK'S SHOES

3/5/2015 17576800

156983 3/12/2015 9740929656 VERIZON WIRELESS

156895 3/5/2015 2551906001 S & S SUPPLIES & SOLUTIONS

156890 3/5/2015 20150302 LOUIS RIVERA III

156945 3/12/2015 59616001 HYDRAULIC CONTROLS INC

156964 3/12/2015 261888 RKI INSTRUMENTS INC

156868 3/5/2015 20150304 MIKE HOVEY

156846 3/5/2015 232081 AUTO BODY TOOLMART

156856 3/5/2015 20150210 DALE HARDWARE INC

156986 3/12/2015 8040367455 VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC

Description

5.25 TONS 1/2 MED TYPE A

SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE & SUPPORT RENEWAL

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

SAFETY SHOES: T. JACOB

SAFETY SHOES: C. BOSICK

WIRELESS SERV 01/21/15-02/20/15

28 BXS GLOVES & 10 BXS IODINE SWABS

EXP REIMB: MARCON TRAINING, KNOXVILLE, TN

FILTRERS FOR IPS HYD HEADGATE UNIT

2 SENSORS, PLUG-IN. LEL, EAGLE 2

EXP REIMB: MEALS/BAGGAGE/BRIDGE TOLL - MARCON TF

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

02/15 - ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

1 LIQUID DETERGENT & 3 BDH BUFFER REF STD PH4 RED

Page 10 of 13

Invoice Amt Check Am

$397.31 S397.31

$395.00 S395.00

$163.22 $394.47

$49.00

$103.99

$78.26

$180.64 S379.82

$199.18

S364.78 $364.78

$364.68 $364.68

$357.99 $357.99

$333.08 $333.08

$328.50 $328.50

$319.09 $319.09

$314.04 $314.04

$305.97 $305.97

$305.78 $305.78

Page 52 of 62



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

2/28/2015-3/13/2015

fteck No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

156939 3/12/2015 9652420341 GRAINGER INC

3/12/2015 9653618257

3/12/2015 9652420333

156930 3/12/2015 88532 COPYMAT OF NEWARK/FREMONT

156901 3/5/2015 20150304 ELOY SEPULVEDA

156905 3/5/2015 15847071 TRI DIM FILTER CORPORATION

156923 3/12/2015 10606130 BLAISDELL'S

3/12/2015 10608160

3/12/2015 10606460

3/12/2015 10812510

3/12/2015 10606461

3/12/2015 10610310

156871 3/5/2015 200534413 IRON MOUNTAIN

156980 3/12/2015 9853075.0 UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

156988 3/12/2015 20150310 WEF-WATER ENVIRONMENT FEDERATI

156929 3/12/2015 14861 COHEN GROUP

156932 3/12/2015 20150306 MANUEL DEL TORO

156852 3/5/2015 44585 CDW GOVERNMENT LLC

156881 3/5/2015 103072 MUNIQUIP. LLC

Description

20 EA VISORS - POLYCARB

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

3 EA CARGO STRAPS

500 DOOR HANGERS

EXP REIMB: MARCON TRAINING. KNOXVILLE, TN

100 TRI-DEK 15/40 2 PLY PADS

2 D-RING BINDERS

1 BX LTR FOLDERS

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

1 BX LGL STRT POCKET

1 SHELF BIN

1 CRG INK CYN/MAG/YEL

DATA/MEDIA OFF-SITE STORAGE JAN 2015

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 02/14/15

WEF MEMBERSHIP R PIPKIN

INDUSTRIAL HYGIENIST FOR BOYCE

EXP REIMB: AIRFARE CWEA CONFERENCE

ASTD THICKENER CONTROL BLDG IMP SWITCHES

1 EA LEVEL SENSORS FOR NEW TANKS

Page 11 of 13

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$136.22 $303.97

$102.27

$65.48

$294.08 $294.08

$278.00 $278.00

$276.68 $276.68

$24.07 $269.60

$20.25

$105.42

$58.02

$7.10

$54.74

$237.89 $237.89

$229.81 $229.81

$218.00 $218.00

$210.00 $210.00

$208.20 $208.20

S207.00 $207.00

SI 95.74 S195.74

Page 53 of 62



Check No.

156961

156966

156861

156897

156847

156882

156917

156985

156902

156896

156916

156893

156889

156968

156840

156900

156972

156876

156918

Date

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/12/2015

3/12/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/12/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/12/2015

3/5/2015

3/5/2015

3/12/2015

3/5/2015

3/12/2015

Invoice No.

20150305

20150310

745575

85340220150220

20150302

18913

11350

31055

855214541

27030

1310

20150304

71235

2551906002

91399

20150302

20150311

20150302

4088644120150223

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

2/28/2015-3/13/2015

Vendor

JOHN POWELL

JOSE RODRIGUES JR

ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE ASSOC

SAN FRANCISCO WATER DEPT

JEFFREY BARTON

NORTHWEST HYDRAULIC CONSULTANT

ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

VOX NETWORK SOLUTIONS INC

SHARP BUSINESS SYSTEMS

SAFETYLINE INC

ALAMEDA COUNTY TREASURER

THERESA RODRIGUEZ

REMOTE SATELLITE SYSTEMS INTL

S & S SUPPLIES & SOLUTIONS

ACE SEAL LLC

JOHN SEO

JENNIFER SIO-KWOK

DUNG LU

ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

Description

EXP REIMB: CWEA ANNUAL CONFERENCE AIRFARE

EXP REIMB: CWEA ANNUAL CONFERENCE

1 AMMONIA STD

SERVICE 01/22/15 TO 02/19/15

TRAVEL REIMB: AIRFARE FOR CWEA

TRANSPORT SYSTEM SURGE ANALYSIS

COST SHARE CM HEW REBATE PROGRAM

ACTIVATE PHONE JACK BUILDING 83

MTHLY MAINTENANCE BASED ON USE

ORANGE ANSI TOWING JACKET - LAM

36 ASSESSOR'S MAPS

EXP REIMB: MANAGEMENT MEETING LUNCH

IRIDIUM SVC FEE MARCH 2015

24 PRS G-TEK MAXIFLEX II GLOVES

6 O RINGS FOR PIG LAUNCHER

EXP REIMB: CWEA RENEWAL FEE

EXP REIMB: LUNCH EC ADMIN SPECIALIST I QAI PANEL

EXP REIMB: CALLOUT MILEAGE

SERV TO: 02/23/15 - BOYCE ROAD

Page 12 of 13

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$189.20 $189.20

$189.20 $189.20

$180.35 $180.35

$175.81 $175.81

$160.20 $160.20

$158.51 $158.51

$150.00 $150.00

$120.00 $120.00

$115.71 $115.71

$115.19 $115.19

$108.00 $108.00

$100.00 $100.00

$97.90 $97.90

$88.83 $88.83

$80.77 $80.77

$79.00 $79.00

$71.95 $71.95

$59.00 $59.00

$58.78 $58.78

Page 54 of 62



Check No. Date Invoice No.

156885 3/5/2015 224720150224

156858 3/5/2015 615320150218

156862 3/5/2015 77114

156853 3/5/2015 277019

3/5/2015 277089

156865 3/5/2015 3194727

156967 3/12/2015 7559363400

3/12/2015 7558491100

3/12/2015 7559230400

156978 3/12/2015 125795344002

156951 3/12/2015 24201012

156864 3/5/2015 85402

Invoices:

Credit Memos: 2

$0- $1,000: 161

$1,000 -$10,000: 47

$10,000-$100,000 16

Over $100,000: 3

Total: 229

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

2/28/2015-3/13/2015

Vendor

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC

DISH NETWORK

GORILLA METALS

CENTERVILLE LOCKSMITH

GROENIGER AND COMPANY

RS HUGHES CO INC

UNITED RENTALS NORTHWEST INC

MCMASTER SUPPLY INC

GREEN LEAF CLEANERS

-88.55

52,179.90

152,146.71

396,393.31

474,331.16

1,074,962.53

Description

SERV TO 02/23/15 CS TRAINING TRAILER

MAR2015-SERVICE FEE

ASTD METAL, STEEL, STAINLESS, AND ALUMINUM

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

1 EA 1/4 OD X 50 SOFT REF TUBE

1 VEST SAFETY MESH - CREDIT

1 RAIN SUIT OVERALL

1 VEST SAFETY MESH

FORKLIFT VAR REACH 6000* 4 WEEK RENTAL

12 EA PIPE FITTINGS

DRY CLEAN JACKET - M. LUBINA

Checks:

Invoice Amt Check Amt

S56.13

S50.85

$47.97

$25.94

$15.69

S39.01

$-16.52

$31.47

$16.52

S26.31

S14.37

S8.00

S56.13

$50.85

$47.97

$41.63

$39.01

$31.47

$26.31

$14.37

$8.00

$0-$1,000: 91 35,848.39

$1,000-$10,000: 46 154,936.31

$10,000 - $100,000: 15 409,846.67

Over $100,000 : 2 474,331.16

Total: 154 1,074,962.53

Page 13 of 13
Page 55 of 62



  

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny 
Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 

DATE: March 17, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Armando Lopez, Treatment and Disposal Services Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 10b - Meeting of March 23, 2015 
 Information Item: Co-Digestion Pilot  
  
Recommendation: 
 
Information only. 
 
Background: 
 
The recent completion of the Cogeneration System has significantly improved the District’s ability 
to generate its own power. Currently the District is producing approximately 1,700 kW of power, 
which equates to approximately 65% of the treatment plant’s power needs.  The cogen engines 
selected for the new project were chosen, in part, for their operational flexibility that would allow 
the District to operate the engines on biogas, natural gas, or some combination thereof. Currently, 
the engines are running on a blended fuel mixture of about 75% biogas and 25% natural gas. The 
natural gas purchased to supplement the biogas to keep the generators running full time is 
currently costing the District approximately $20,000 per month. Even with this monthly 
expenditure, our current estimates conclude it is still more cost effective to purchase this 
supplemental natural gas than to purchase the same equivalent power from PG&E.  The same 
equivalent power from PG&E would cost the District approximately $38,000 monthly, based on 
current estimates. 
 

Page 56 of 62



The natural gas currently purchased presents an opportunity for operational cost savings if said 
gas were to be replaced with additional biogas. Staff reviewed the anaerobic digestion capacity 
and have found there is some available capacity that could be leveraged into producing more 
biogas. Many agencies are either experimenting with or currently utilizing organic material that is 
transported to the treatment plant for digestion (food waste, FOG or food processing waste are 
some examples).  This practice is beneficial in keeping said material out of landfills, and has also 
proven to significantly increase the production of biogas. Due to this advantage, staff is planning 
on implementing a pilot program to explore the benefits at our facility. Although many other 
plants having been doing this for some time, every plant is different and a pilot program would 
be the prudent manner to move this concept forward. There are a few sources of material that 
the District is currently exploring, and the intent is to move forward with one of these sources on 
a trial basis and evaluate the results over a period of several months. There is no cost to the 
District for this feedstock.   
 
Staff has evaluated this opportunity and have come up with a conservative plan for a trial that 
would allow us to proceed and monitor digester health closely. The initial trial would feed one 
digester with the organic material at a very low feed rate. This feed rate would result in delivery 
of organic material to the site every 3-5 days. The trial would require the rental of a holding tank 
and purchase of some materials. The tank would be located near the secondary digesters and 
would be connected to the existing odor scrubber system to mitigate any odors that could be 
generated. Staff will monitor gas production for both quality and quantity. If this limited trial is 
successful, expansion of the feed to all digesters would follow in order to assure the results are 
repeatable on a full scale. 
 
Staff believes, after reviewing industry literature, this waste stream has the potential to create 
between 5-10% of additional biogas.  However, actuals may vary depending on site conditions. 
Although this would not meet all of our existing needs, the additional biogas would equate to 
monthly savings ranging between $7,500 and $15,000 (full scale). Startup and onetime costs are 
currently estimated to be about $16,000 with an ongoing monthly cost of $1,000 for the rental of 
the tank. The desired outcome is to have collected enough data over a 3-4 month period to 
evaluate the potential for an ongoing program and permanent needs to support such an effort. 
The best case scenario would be that additional gas, consistent with our estimates (or greater), 
would be generated and offset our current natural gas purchases. Worst case, the pilot program 
results are lack luster and discontinued, the rental of the tank ceases and the equipment 
purchased is absorbed into other aspects of the operation. 
 

Page 57 of 62



Page 58 of 62



Page 59 of 62



Page 60 of 62



Page 61 of 62



Page 62 of 62


	1 03-23-15 Agenda
	1. Call to Order.
	2. Pledge of Allegiance.
	3. Roll Call.
	Information 5. Monthly Operations Report for February 2015 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).
	6. Written Communications.
	7. Oral Communications.
	a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District business and are welcome to request information from staff.
	b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.
	THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

	2 03-23-15 Committee Notice
	4 03-09-15 Minutes
	UCALL TO ORDER
	President Fernandez called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
	UPledge of Allegiance
	URoll Call
	PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, President
	Jennifer Toy, Vice President
	Tom Handley, Secretary
	Pat Kite, Director
	Anjali Lathi, Director
	STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager
	Dave O’Hara, District Counsel
	Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager
	Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager
	James Schofield, Collection Services Manager
	Armando Lopez, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager
	Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, & Construction Manager
	Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary
	UWRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS
	There were no written communications.
	UORAL COMMUNICATIONS
	There were no oral communications.
	UAUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDER NO. 10 WITH GSE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR THE THICKENER CONTROL BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT
	This item was reviewed by the Construction Committee.  Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the construction contract for the Thickener Control Building Improvements Project was awarded to GSE on May 27, 2014.  Bid Alternate D was included in th...
	It was moved by Secretary Handley, seconded by Director Lathi, to Authorize the General Manager to Execute Change Order No. 10 with GSE Construction Company for the Thickener Control Building Improvements Project.  Motion carried unanimously.
	UADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2753, ACCEPTING A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT FOR TRACT 8042 LOCATED NEAR MISSION BOULEVARD AND CHANTECLER DRIVE IN THE CITY OF FREMONT
	This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated Edenbridge Capital Partners will be constructing a new housing development near the intersection of Mission Boulevard and Chantecler Drive in ...
	It was moved by Vice President Toy, seconded by Secretary Handley, to Adopt Resolution    No. 2753, Accepting a Sanitary Sewer Easement for Tract 8042 Located Near Mission Boulevard and Chantecler Drive in the City of Fremont.  Motion carried unanimou...
	UAPPROVE PRIVATE LATERAL STUDY NEXT STEPS
	This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Collection Services Manager Schofield stated that at the Board Workshop held October 20, 2014, staff reported on the results of the District’s Private Lateral Study.  The purpose of the...
	The Board cited concerns regarding the proposed grant program, and directed staff to continue exploring a potential loan program.  General Manager Eldredge stated staff will gather information and present a detailed report to the Board at a future mee...
	It was moved by Secretary Handley, seconded by Director Lathi, to reallocate Private Lateral Study funds to the development of materials for the Lateral Awareness Outreach Program.  Motion carried unanimously.
	INFORMATION ITEMS:
	UCheck RegisterU
	All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction.
	UPublication of Global Plating and Safety-Kleen, Newark as Significant Violators in 2014U  Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated that per the requirements of 40 CFR Section 403.8(f)(2)(viii) of the General Pretreatment Regulations for new and exi...
	UReport on the EBDA Commission Meeting of February 19, 2015U
	Secretary Handley reported the following:
	 The General Managers Report indicated the City of Hayward and Union Sanitary District approved the language changes to the Fourth JPA Amendment.  The remaining member agencies are scheduled to review the revisions in March.
	 The Managers Advisory Committee discussed a strategy for moving the Hayward Effluent Pump Station.
	 The Financial Management Committee approved the January List of Disbursements and Treasurer’s Report.
	 The Regulatory Affairs Committee reviewed the status report for the NPDES permit.  The Committee discussed January permit compliance and the status of the BACWA nutrients watershed permit.
	 The Operations & Maintenance (O&M) Committee reviewed EBDA’s performance and the status of O&M projects.  EBDA is working with Oro Loma staff on the OLEPS automation review and upgrade project.
	 The Personnel Committee met in closed session to review the details for the General Manager’s transition strategy, and there was no reportable action.
	UCASA 12UPUthUPU Annual Washington D.C. ConferenceU
	General Manager Eldredge stated he and Secretary Handley attended the 12PthP Annual CASA Washington D.C. Conference February 23 – 25, 2015.  General Manager Eldredge stated that one of the more interesting concepts discussed at the Conference was an o...
	Secretary Handley stated CASA provided a list of talking points to aide in discussions with Congressional representatives.   The list included a request to extend the length of NPDES permit renewal from five-year terms to ten-year terms, and declared ...

	5.1 Monthly Ops Memo and Summary
	5.2 February 2015 Odor Report
	5.3 Odor Report Map - February 2015
	5.4 FY15 Work&Leave Charts
	5.5.1 Business Services Group Activities Report
	Performance Measures

	5.5.2 Budget & Finance Report
	Dist Summary

	5.5.3 Revenues & Expenses
	5.5.4 Portfolio Holdings Charts
	5.5.5 Portfolio Holdings Report
	5.5.6 Portfolio Activity Report
	5.6 TS 02-2015 MonthlyActivity - February-REV
	Construction Projects
	Boyce Road LS Phase 2 – Thomas 
	Cogeneration Project – Raymond
	Thickener Control Building Improvements Project – Curtis
	Upper Hetch Hetchy SS Rehabilitation – Chris E.
	Primary Digester No. 5 Rehabilitation Project - Chris P.
	Design/Study Projects
	Irvington Basin Master Plan Update – Capacity Assessment - Rollie
	Local Limits and Wastewater Treatability Study – Michael D.
	Seismic Study - Raymond
	Cast Iron Lining Phase VI – Andrew
	Miscellaneous Spot Repairs Phase VI – Andrew
	Alvarado-Niles Road SS Rehabilitation – Chris E.
	Pine St. Easement Improvements – Chris E.
	Plant Site Use Study – Curtis
	MCC and PLC Replacement Project, Phase 3 – Chris P.
	Generator Controls Upgrade Project – Chris P.
	Plant Facilities Improvements Project – Thomas
	Plant Lighting Study – Thomas
	Administrative and Field Operations Buildings Leak Investigation – Chris P.
	Pump Station Master Plan – Raymond
	Newark Backyard SS Relocation – Phase 2 – Rollie/Al B.
	Aeration Blower Project – Chris P.

	5.7 CS January and February 2015 Ops Report
	5.8 0215-FMC Monthly Ops February 2015
	5.9 TD Monthly Ops Feb 2015
	Report Pages

	8 Digester 5 Rehab - item pulled
	9.1 Approve Exception 180-Day Wait Period-March 2015 - PE
	9.2 Retiree Certification of Compliance with Unemployment Insurance Payment
	9.3 Offer Letter - Andy Morrison 3-15
	9.4 Resolution For Exception to the 180-Day Wait Period 3-23-15
	10a Bd Ck Reg Rpt031315
	10b Info - Co-Digestion Pilot
	99 Newspaper Articles



